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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of SPR Engenious Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of SPR Engenious Limited (‘the Company’),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policy
information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2025, and its loss (including other comprehensive income), its
cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (‘ICAI') together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of SPR Engenious Limited on the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 (cont’d)

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The accompanying financial statements have been approved by the Company’s Board of Directors.
The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation and presentation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of
the Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the
Act we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

¢ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override

of internal control; L opNDIGE
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Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of SPR Engenious Limited on the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 (cont’d)

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls;

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

e Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern; and

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we report that the Company has not paid or provided for any managerial
remuneration during the year. Accordingly, reporting under section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act we give in the Annexure A, a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit,
we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying financial
statements;

b) Except for the effects of the matter stated in paragraph 12(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule
11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion, proper
books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books

¢) The financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section 133
of the Act;

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2025 from being appoint
as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;
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Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of SPR Engenious Limited on the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 (cont’d)

f) The qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in paragraph 12(b) above on reporting under section 143(3)(b) of the Act and
paragraph 12(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 (as amended);

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Company as on 31 March 2025 and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate report in Annexure B, wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion; and

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  the Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position
as at 31 March 2025.;

i. the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2025,

ii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2025.;

a. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in note 48 (i) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or securities premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (‘the intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Company (‘the Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in note 48(ii) to the financial statements, no funds have been received
by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the
Funding Parties’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Company shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c. Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe
that the management representations under sub-ciauses (a) and (b) above contain any
material misstatement.

V., The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31 March 2025.

Chartered Accountants
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Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of SPR Engenious Limited on the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 (cont’d)

vi.  As stated in note 58 to the financial statements and based on our examination which included
test checks, the Company, in respect of financial year commencing on or after 1 April 2024,
has used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has been operated throughout the year for
all relevant transactions recorded in the software. However, the audit trail feature in the
accounting software used for maintenance of accounting records was not enabled up to 23
January 2025 at the database level to log any direct changes. Further, during the course of our
audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.
Furthermore, the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory
requirements for record retention from the date the audit trail was enabled for the accounting
software.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

AM bandon (T

Arun Tandon
Partner

Membership No.: 517273
UDIN: 25517273BMIDAES8247

Place: New Delhi
Date: 07 May 2025
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Annexure A referred to in paragraph 11 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of SPR Engenious Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we report that:

(i) (@) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including

(b)

quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment, capital work-in-
progress, and relevant details of right-of-use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

The property, plant and equipment, capital work-in-progress, and relevant details of right-
of-use assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and no
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency of
physical verification programme adopted by the Company, is reasonable having regard to
the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

(c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties held by the Company (other than properties

(d)

(e)

where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of
the lessee), disclosed in note 3 and 6 to the financial statements, are held in the name of
the Company. For title deeds of immovable properties in the nature of land situated at
Madhya Pradesh with gross carrying values of Rs. 278.84 millions as at 31 March 2025,
which have been mortgaged as security for loans or borrowings taken by the Company,
confirmations with respect to title of the Company have been directly obtained by us from
the respective lenders.

The Company has adopted cost model for its Property, Plant and Equipment including right-
of-use assets and intangible assets. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(d) of the
Companies (Auditor's Report) Order 2020 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Order’) is not
applicable to the Company.

No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as
amended) and rules made thereunder.

(i) (8) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals

(iif)
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(b)

(a)

during the year, except for goods-in-transit. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of
such verification by the management is appropriate and no discrepancies of 10% or more
in the aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed as compared to book records. In
respect of goods-in-transit, these have been confirmed from corresponding receipt and/or
dispatch inventory records.

The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits by banks or financial institutions on
the basis of security of current assets at any point of time during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(ii}(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances
in the nature of loans to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships during the year.
Further, the Company has made investments in companies during the year, in respect of
which:

The Company has not provided any loans or provided any advances in the nature of loans,
or guarantee, or security to any other entity during the year. Accordingly, reporti 3

clauses 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. é’qﬁ
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Annexure A referred to in paragraph 11 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of SPR Engenious Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(cont’d)

(iv)

(v)

(b)

(c)

(b)

(viii)

(ix)

Chartered Accountants

(@)

(b)

The Company has not provided any guarantee or given any security or granted any loans
or advances in the nature of loans during the year. However, the Company has made
investment in 1 entity amounting to Rs. 2,176.23 millions (year-end balance Rs. 2,176.23
millions) and in our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us,
such investments made are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

The Company does not have any outstanding loans and advances in the nature of loans at
the beginning of the current year nor has granted any loans or advances in the nature of
loans during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(iii)(c), 3(iii)(d), 3(iii)(e) and
3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of section 186 of the Act in respect of investments made, as
applicable. Further, the Company has not entered into any transaction covered under section 185
and section 186 of the Act in respect of loans granted, guarantees and security provided by it.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted any deposits or there are no amounts which have been deemed to be
deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance
of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section
(1) of section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s products/ services / business
activities. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax,
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as
applicable, with the appropriate authorities. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that there are no
statutory dues referred to in subclause (a) above that have not been deposited with the
appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that no transactions
were surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) which have not been previously recorded in the books
of accounts.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not defaulted in repayment of its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any
lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us and representation received from
the management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report that
the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution
or government or any government authority.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, money [ai
by way of term loans were applied for the purposes for which these were obtaingdCHAND/0
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Annexure A referred to in paragraph 11 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of SPR Engenious Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(cont’d)

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and on an overall
examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised by the Company on short
term basis have, prima facie, not been utilised for long term purposes.

(e) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall
examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds
from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries.

(f) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries.

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) During the year, the Company has made preferential allotment of shares. In our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the
requirements of section 42 and section 62 of the Act and the rules framed thereunder with respect
to the same. Further, the amounts so raised were used for the purposes for which the funds were
raised, though surplus funds which were not required for immediate utilisation have been invested
in readily realisable liquid investments

(xi) () To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the
period covered by our audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to
us by the management of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Act
has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, with the Central Government for the period covered by our audit.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to
us by the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions
entered into by the Company, with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the
Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements
etc., as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures
specified in Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as prescribed under section
133 of the Act. Further, according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is not required to constitute an audit committee under section 177 of the Act.

(xiv) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
an internal audit system which is commensurate with the size and nature of its business as
required under the provisions of section 138 of the Act.

(b) We have considered the reports issued by the Internal Auditors of the Company till date for the
period under audit.

(xv) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and
reporting under clause 3(xv) of the Order with respect to compliance with the provisiogs:
192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.
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Annexure A referred to in paragraph 11 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of SPR Engenious Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(cont’d)

(xvi)

(d)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xxi)

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management
of the Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016) does not have any CIC.

The Company has incurred cash losses amounting to Rs. 9.62 millions in the current financial
year but had not incurred cash losses in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information in the financial statements, our knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors
and management and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions ,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability
of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the
audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as
and when they fall due.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not meet the
criteria as specified under sub-section (1) of section 135 of the Act read with the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and according, reporting under clause 3(xx)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone
financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of
said clause under this report.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

A\

Arun Tandon

Partner

Membership No.: 517273
UDIN: 25517273BMIDAE8247

Place: New Delhi
Date: 07 May 2025
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Annexure B

Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of SPR Engenious Limited (‘the Company’) as at
and for the year ended 31 March 2025, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Company as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note') issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of the Company’s business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial
Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing issued by the ICAI prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, and the Guidance Note issued by the
ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of such
internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition e, or
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of SPR Engenious
Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 (cont’d)

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2025, based on the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the |CAL.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Arun Tandon
Partner
Membership No.: 517273
UDIN: 25517273BMIDAE8247

Place: New Delhi
Date: 07 May 2025
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ASSETS
Non-current assets

a) Property, plant and equipment
b) Capital work-in-progress
c) Intangible assets
d) Right of use assets
¢) Financial assets
(1) Investments
(if) Other financial assets
f) Deferred tax assets (net)
& Other non-current asset

Current assets

a) Inventories
b) Financial asscts
® Investments
(if) Trade receivables
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents
(iv) Other bank balances other than (jii) above
(v) Other financial assets
c) Other current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity
a) Equity share capital
b) Other equity

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities

a) Financial liabilities
(©) Borrowings
(ii) Lease liabilities
b) Provisions

Current liabilities
a) Financial liabilities
© Borrowings
(1]) Lease liabilities*
(iti) Trade payables
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprses
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
and small enterprises
(iv) Other financial liabilities
b} Other current liahilities
) Provisions

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
* Rounded off to zero.
See accompanying notes to the financial statements
In teems of our report attached

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Hirm Registrytion No. (101
69&* ‘((wJ‘ S

Arun Tandon
Partner
Membership no 5172

Place : New Delhi
Date:07 May 2025

SPR Engenious Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025

Note As at
No. 31 March 2025
Rs. million
3 645.81
4 196.20
5 0.27
6 272.96
i 4,273.12
8 62.45
9 4.72
10 59.62
5,515.15
12 50.22
7 152.30
13 47.81
14 32.53
14 328.00
8 3.60
11 118.98
733.44
6,248.59
15 6,000.00
16 (101.85)
5,898.15
17 190.00
35 19.18
19 7.60
216.78
18 10.00
35 0.00
20
20 2.43
20 45.50
21 70.76
22 3.04
19 1.93
133.66
6,248.59
1-59

olc¢

As at
31 March 2024
Rs. million

357.53
161.02
0.11
275.81

2,099.00
44.33
472
48.90
2,991.42

6.66

408.08
4.78
5.04

139.53
5.23

78.61

647.94

3,639.36

3,500.00

(40.87)
3,459.13

19.18
5.28
24.46

38.49
112.41
3.05
1.41
155.77

3,639.36

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Ml oL L\L«Mv;m

Pankaj Gupta Prem Prakash Rahis

Company Secretary Chief Finneial Officor

Erishnakumar Srinivasan
Whole Timi Director

DIN : 00051065



SPR Engenious Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2025

I Revenue from operations
I Other income
III  Total income (I+1I)

IV Expenses
Cost of materials consumed
(Inctease) / decrease in inventories of finished poods and work-in-progress
Employee benefits expense
Finance costs
Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Other expenses
Total expenses

4 Loss before tax (II1-IV)
VI  Tax expense:

i) Current ax
i) Deferred tax

VII  Loss for the year (V-VI)
VIII  Other comprehensive income
A (i) Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
2) Remeasurements of the post employment defined benefit plans
(if) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
B (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

2) Fair value change of cash flow hedge
(i) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

Total other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income (VII+VIII)

Earnings per share ( of Rs. 10/- each)
Basic (Rs)
Diluted (Rs)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

In terms of our report attached
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

wrm Registgation Mo, 001076
o lad

Arun Tandon
Partner
Membership no. 5172

Place : New Delhi
Date:07 May 2025

Pankaj Gupta
Company Secretary

Note For the year ended
No. 31 March 2025
Rs. million
23 176.83
24 o 5941
236.30
25 76.06
26 (15.77)
27 42.68
28 6.00
29 46.93
30 13695
292.85
(56.55)
(56.55)
32 0.37
0.37
(56.18)
(0.14)
0.14)
1-59

For the year ended
31 March 2024
Rs. million

271
31.66
34.37

0.79
(0.01)
14,07
3.57
6.78
15.16
40.36

(5.99)

(5.99)

0.03

0.03

(5.96)

(0.03)
(0.03)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

el Mradedormo.

Prem Prakash Ruthi
Chief Financial Officer

Krishnakumar Srinivasan
Whole Time Director
DIN : 00692717

Luy/D. Shriram
irector
DIN : 00051065



SPR Engenious Limited

Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2025

A. Cash flow from operating activities
Loss before tax

Adjustments for :

Depreciation/amortisation

Finance costs

Interest income

Fair value gain on investments

Gain of sale of investments

Operating loss before working capital changes

Adjustments for:

(Increase)/ decrease in inventories

(Increase)/ decrease in trade receivables
(Increase)/ decrease in other financial assets
(Increase)/ decrease in other assets

Increase/ (decrease) in trade payables
Increase/ (decrease) in other financial liabilities
Increase/ (decrease) in other liabilities and provisions
Cash used in operations

Income tax paid

Net cash used in operating activities

B. Cash flow from investing activities

Interest received

Sale of property,plant and equipment
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of other intangible assets
Investment in subsidiary

Investments in mutual funds

Sale proceeds from mutual funds
Proceeds from redemption of deposits
Investment in deposits

Net cash used in investing activities

C. Cash flow from financing activities
Payment of lease liability*
Interest on lease liability
Interest paid
Issue of equity share capital
Expenses on issue of share capital
Proceeds from borrowings
Net cash generated from financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

* Rounded off to zero.
Components of cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand

- current accounts

Note:

@A)

(B)

©

(A+B+C)

1. The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the Indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS ) 7.

In terms of our report attached

Chartered Accountants
Ffrm Regrstragon No. ()

o {
Arun Tandon

Partner
Membership no. 517273

Place : New 1)l
Date:07 May 24

! . poagy

Prem Prakash Rathi

Chuel Finaneal Officer

Company Secretary

For the year ended For the year ¢nded
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. million Rs. million
(56.55) (5.99)
46.93 6.78
6.00 3.57
(9.37) (11.72)
077 @)
(18.18) (16.37)
(31.94) (26.50)
(43.56) (6.66)
(43.02) (4.78)
(0.12) (3.33)
(69.05) (78.44)
9.03 31.43
(41.62) 50.14
5.11 4.82
(215.17) (33.32)
(0.52) (0.65)
(215.69) (33.97)
10.99 7.18
0.56 .
(377.89) (550.37)
0.27) 0.11)
(2,174.13) (1,359.97)
(3,673.46) (3,034.31)
3,948.18 2,645.35
70.00 120.00
(250.00) (74.53)
(2,446.02) (2,246.76)
(0.00) (0.00)
(1.92) (1.92)
(4.08) (1.65)
2,500.00 2,300.00
(4.80) (20.69)
200.00
2,689.20 2,275.74
27.49 (4.99)
5.04 10.03
32,53 5.04
3253 5.04
32.53 5.04

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Krishnakumar Srinivasan
Whole Time Director

DIN : 00692717

Luv D /Shriram

Director
L3 2 0051065



SPR EngeniousLimited

Statement of Change in Equity as at 31 March 2025

a) Fully paid up equity shares
( face value of Rs 10/- each)

No of shares

in Million Rs. million
Balance as at 31 March 2023 120.00 1,200.00
Add:Shares issued during the year 230.00 2,300.00
Balance as at 31 March 2024 350.00 3,500.00
Add:Shares issued during the year 250.00 2,500.00
Balance as at 31 March 2025 600.00 6,000.00
(b) Other equity Rs. million

Reserve and surplus
Particulars Total
Retained earnings

Balance as at 31 March 2023 (14.22) (14.22)
Profit for the year (5.99) (5.99)
Expenses on issue of share capital (20.70) (20.70)
Other comprehensive income for the year net of tax 0.03 0.03
Balance as at 31 March 2024 (40.87) (40.87)
Profit for the year (56.55) (56.55)
Expenses on issue of share capital (4.80) (4.80)
Other comprehensive income for the year net of tax 037 0.37
Balance as at 31 March 2025 (101.85) (101.85)

In terms of our report attached
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Tgem Registghtion No, 001076N/

.

Arun Tandon
Partner
Membership no. 51727

Company Secretary

Place : New Delhi
Date:07 May 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

feef Mhadndone

f
N
Pankaj Gupta Prem Prakash Rathi

Chief Tinaneial Offeer

Krishnakumar Srinivasan
Whole Time Director
DIN : 00692717




SPR Engenious Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
1. Corporate information

SPR Engenious Limited (“the Company”) having CIN No.- U292992D1.2022PLC405090 is a public
Company domiciled in India and incorporated on September 26, 2022 under the provisions of the
Companies Act, applicable in India. The registered office of the Company is located at 3rd Floor, Himalaya
Housc, 23, Kasturba Gandhi Marg, New Delhi 110001.

The Company’s business activity falls under “automotive component". Primary products manufactured
by the Company are engine valves.

The financial statements of the Company are approved for issuance by the Company's Board of Directors
on 07 May 2025.

2. Material accounting policy information
2.1.1 Basis of accounting and preparation of financial statements

The financial statements have been prepatred in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)
notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read together with Rule 3 of the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2016 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2017 issued by the Ministry
of Corporate Affairs (MCA’).

The financial statements have been prepared under historical cost convention on accrual and going
concern basis, except for the following assets and liabilities:-

i) Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (tefer accounting policy regarding
financial instruments)

i) Investments in unquoted equity shares measured at fair value

iii) Defined benefit liabilities ate measured at present value of defined benefit obligation.

iv) Certain financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is
initially adopted ot a revision to an existing accounting standard tequires a change in the accounting policy
hitherto in use.

The financial statements are presented in INR “(Indian Rupees)” and all values are rounded to the nearest
million, except when otherwise indicated.

2.1.2 Faitr value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset ot paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between matket patticipants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly obsetvable ot estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair valuc of an asset
ot a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
patticipants would take those chatacteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measutement and/or disclosure putposes is determined on such a basis
and measurerpents




SPR Engenious Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

In addition, for financial reporting putpose, fair value measurement are categorised into level 1, 2, or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance
of the inputs to the fair value measutement in the entirety, which are described as follows:

- Level 1: This level includes financial assets that are measured by reference to quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: This level includes financial assets and liabilities, measured using inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that ate obsetvable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or
indirectly (i.e., derived from prices).

- Level 3: This level includes financial assets and liabilities measured using inputs that are not based on
observable market data (unobsetvable inputs). Fait values ate determined in whole or in part, using a
valuation model based on assumptions that ate neither suppotted by prices from observable current
market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available market data.

2.1.3 Current vetsus non-curtent classification

The Company presents assets and liabililes in the balance sheet based on current/non-current
classification

The Company classifies an asset as current asset when:

C it expects to realise the asset, ot intends to sell or consume it, in its normal operating cycle;
. it holds the asset primarily for the purpose of trading.

° it expects to realise the asset within twelve months after the reporting period; or

. the asset is cash or a cash equivalent unless the asset is restricted from being exchanged or used to
settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when:

) it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

. it holds the liability primarily for the purpose of trading

. the liability is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

. it does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the repotting petiod. Tetms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result
in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

All other liabilities ate classified as non-curtrent.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The op;:/;;a{;i.ﬂrg ycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in

"o e . .
cash gf-cash eq-ﬂiy ents. The Company’s normal operating cycle is twelve months.
\ (D




SPR Engenious Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
2.2. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions.

The preparation of the financial statements is in conformity with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
and requires the management to make estimates and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements
and the reported income and cxpenses during the year. The management believes that the estimates used
in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Future results could differ due to
these estimates and the differences between the actual results and the estimates are recognised in the
petiods in which the results are known / matetialise information, about significant areas of estimation
uncettainty and ctitical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognized in the financial statements is included in the following notes.

* Defetted tax: Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the catrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for
taxation purposes. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together
with future tax planning strategies.

* Impairment of financial assets and non-financial assets: The impairment provisions for financial assets
ate based on assumptions about risk of default and expected cash loss rates. The Company uses judgement
in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on Company’s
past histoty, existing matket conditions as well as forward-looking estimates at the end of each reporting
period.

* Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets: value of property, plant and equipment and intangibles at
the end of each tepotting petiod. Factors such as changes in the expected level of usage could significantly
impact the economic useful lives and the residual values of these assets. Consequently, the future
depteciation charge could be revised and may have an impact on the profit of the future years.

* Estimation of defined benefit obligation: Employee benefit obligations are determined using actuarial
valuations. An actuatial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual
developments. These include the estimation of the appropriate discount rate, future salary increases and
mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, the employee
benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each
reporting date.

* Estimation for expected ctredit losses of trade teceivables: Trade receivables do not carry any interest and
are stated at their normal value as reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts.
Individual trade receivables are written off when management believes that there is uncertainty of
collections. Provision is recognised based on the expected ctedit losses, which are the present value of the
cash shortfall over the expected life of the financial assets.

* Inctemental rate of botrowing for lease accounting: The Company cannot readily determine the intetest

rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities.
The IBR is the rate of interest that the Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and
with a similar secutity, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in




SPR Engenious Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

terms and conditions of the lease. The Company estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market
interest rates) when available and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates.

2.3.1 Revenue recognition
Sale of products/services

Revenue from the sale of products or setvices is recognized upon transfer of control to customers.
Revenue is measured at the amount of consideration which the Company expects to be entitled to in
exchange for transferring distinct goods ot services to a customer as specified in the contract, excluding
amounts collected on behalf of third parties (for example, taxes and duties collected on behalf of the
government). A receivable is recognized upon satisfaction of performance obligations as per the contracts
and is measured at transaction price.

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer.
If the Company performs by transferting goods or setvices to a customer before the customer pays
consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is
conditional.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company
has received considetation (ot an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays
consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is
recognised when the payment is made ot the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

2.3.2 Other income
Interest Income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on time
basis, by reference to the ptincipal outstanding and at the interest rate as applicable.

Miscellaneous income

Other tevenues are recognised on accrual basis, except whete thete are uncertainties in realisation /
determination of income and in such case income is recognised on tealisation / cettainty.

2.4.1. Propetty, plant and equipment

Propetty, plant and equipment held for use in production or supply of goods and services, or for
administrative purpose, are stated at histotic cost, net of accumulated depreciation (net of input tax credits
availed) including taxes and other incidental expenses related to acquisition, installation and borrowing
cost on loan taken for the acquisition of qualifying assets upto the date the assets are ready for their
intended usg——




SPR Engenious Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
The cost of an item of propetty, plant and equipment shall be recognised as an asset if, and only if:
(a)  itis probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity; and
(b)  the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Subsequent expenditure can be capitalised only if it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

An item of propetty, plant and equipment is detecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefit
are expected to arise from the continued use of assets. Any gain and loss arising on the disposal of or
retirement is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets
and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

2.4.2. Intangible assets

Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits attributed to the asset
will flow to the entity and the cost of the asset can be reliably measured:

Intangible assets held for use in production ot supply of goods and services, or for administrative purpose,
are stated at are stated at historic cost, net of accumulated depreciation (net of input tax credits availed)
including taxes and other incidental expenses telated to acquisition, installation and borrowing cost on
loan taken for the acquisition of qualifying assets upto the date the assets are ready for their intended use.

An item of intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefit are expected
to atise from the continued use of assets. Any gain and loss arising on the disposal of or retirement is
determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets and is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

2.4.3. Capital work-in-progress

Capital wotk-in-progtess tepresents expenditure incurred in respect of capital projects under development
and are catried at cost. Cost includes related acquisition expenses, development/ construction costs,
borrowing costs and other direct expenditure.

2.4.4, Leases
Lessee Accounting

1. Lease Hability is recognised at the commencement of lease and measured at an amount equal to the
present value of minimum lease payments during the lease term that are not yet paid.

2. Right of use asset is tecognised at the commencement of lease and measured at cost, consisting of initial
measurement of lease liability plus any lease payments made to the lessor at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received, initial estimate of the restoration costs and any
initial direct costs incutred by the lessee. Right-of-use assets are amottized on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets and impairment loss.

3. The lease liability is measured in subsequent periods using the effective interest rate method.




SPR Engenious Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

4. Recognition and measurement exemption is availed for low-value assets and short term leases. Assets
of low value include IT equipment or office furniture. No monetaty threshold has been defined for
low-value assets. Short-term leases are defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.

2.5. Depreciation and amortisation

Depteciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its
estimated residual value.

The Company is following written down value method in case of Furniture, fixtures and office equipment
and straight line method in respect of other assets.

Depreciation on tangible propetty, plant and equipment has been provided as per the useful life presctibed
in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 except in respect of the certain categories of assets, in whose
case the life of the assets has been assessed based on technical advice, taking into account the nature, the
cstimated usage, operating conditions of the asset, past histoty of replacement, anticipated technological
changes and maintenance practices etc. Following are the estimated useful lives of various categoty of
assets used :

Building = thirty years

Plant and equipment

- General - twenty years

- Electtic installation / equipment - fifteen years
Vehicles - five years
Furniture and fixture / Office equipment - five yeats

Right of use assets under leases - over the lease period

All intangible assets are amortised on straight-line method over their estimated useful life as undet.
Computer software - three years
Assets costing up to Rs. 5,000 ate fully depreciated in the year of acquisition.

Depteciation on assets acquired/sold/discarded duting the year is charged on pro-rata basis except for
furniture, fixtures and equipments whete full yeat’s depreciation is computed in the year of acquisition and
no depteciation is provided in the year of sale.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depteciaion method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, and the effect of any changes in cstiatc is accounted for on a prospective basis.

2.6. Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities ate tecognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

aquistkion ot issue of financial assets and financial

Transactiop/qusts'\tha are directly attributable to the i

ligbi]ities ha,x"ue norﬂtfgur value through profiy

/ ) | K |

*

[x]

d to the fair value on initial recognition.




SPR Engenious Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
Financial assets

All regular way putchases ot sales of financial assets are accounted for at trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchase or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation ot convention in the market place.

Classification of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost

i) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows; and

ii) The contractual terms of the insttument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of ptincipal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (except for debt instruments that are designated as at fair
value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

1) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets; and

ii) The contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fait value through profit or loss

Financial asset which are not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently measured at fair
value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has
applied the practical expedient ate measured at the transaction ptice determined under Ind AS 115. The
average credit petiod is 20 days

Investments

Investment in subsidiaries are catried at cost less impairment losses if any. Any permanent diminution in
the value of investments is provided for in the books of account.

Investments in mutual fund are measured at fait value through profit or loss.
Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities ate subsequently measured at amortised cost or at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL). For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying
amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

Fair value is determined in the manner desctibed in note no 40.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
2.7. Detrivative financial instruments

The Company entets into a vatiety of detivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest
rate and foreign exchange rate tisks, including foreign exchange forward contracts and cross currency
interest rate swaps.

Derivatives ate initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to theit fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain or loss
is recognised in the statement of profit and loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and

effective as a hedging insttument, in which event the timing of the recognition in the statement of profit
and loss depends on the nature of the hedging relationship and the nature of the hedged item.

(i) Financial assets or financial liabilities, at fair value through profit ot loss.

This categoty has detivative financial assets ot liabilities which are not designated as hedges. Although the
Company believes that these derivatives constitute hedges from an economic perspective, they may not
qualify for hedge accounting under Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments. Any derivative that is either not
designated a hedge, ot is so designated but is ineffective as per Ind AS 109, is categotized as a financial
asset ot financial liability, at fait value through profit or loss.

Detivatives not designated as hedges are recognized initially at fair value and attributable transaction costs
are recognized in net profit in the statement of profit and loss when incurred. Subsequent to initial
recognition, these detivatives ate measuted at fair value through the statement of profit and loss and the
resulting exchange gains or losses are included in the statement of profit and loss. Assets /liabilities in this
category are presented as cutrent assets/ curtent liabilities if they are either held for trading or are expected
to be realized within 12 months after the Balance sheet date.

Fair value is determined in the manner described in note no 38.
2.8. Inventories

Inventories ate valued at lower of cost and net tealisable value. Costs incurred in bringing each product
to its present location and condition is accounted for as follows:

1) Raw materials, loose tools and stote and spates : Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred
in bringing the inventoties to their ptesent location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average
basis. Raw materials and other supplies held fot use in the production of inventories are not written down
below cost if the finished ptoducts in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above
cost.

if) Wortk in progtess: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing
ovetheads based on the normal operating capacity.

iii) Finished goods: cost includes cost of ditect matetials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing
ovetheads based on the normal operating capacity.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinaty course of business, less estimated costs of
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2.9. Foreign cutrency transactions and translations

Transactions in foreign cutrency are tecorded on initial recognition at the exchange rate prevailing on or
closely approximating to the date of transaction.

At the end of each reporting petiod, monetaty items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetaty items catried at fair value that are denominated in foteign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency ate not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetaty items are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period
in which they atise except exchange differences on transactions entered into in ordet to hedge certain
foreign cutrency risks.

For foreign cuttency denominated financial assets measured at amortised cost or FVTPL, the exchange
differences are recognised in statement of profit and loss cxcept for those which are designated as hedging
instruments in a hedging relationship.

2.10. Employee benefits
Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits:

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered setvice entitling them to the contributions.

Contribution towards Provident Fund is paid as per the statutory provisions. These benefits are charged
to the statement of profit and loss of the year when they become due. For defined post-employment
employee benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit
method, with actuarial valuations being catried out at the end of each annual reporting period.
Remeasurement, comptising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the return on plan
assets (excluding net intetest), is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit
recognised in other comptehensive income in the petiod in which they occur. Remeasurement recognised
in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and is not reclassified to the
statement of profit and loss. Past setvice cost is recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period
of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period
to the net defined benefit liability ot asset. Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

1) Setvice cost (including cutrent setvice cost, past setvice cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments
and settlements);

ii) Net interest expense or income; and

1) Re-measurement.
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Short-term and other long-term employee benefits:

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries in the period
the related setvice is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange
for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount
of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related setvice.

Leave availment / encashment benefit is provided as per Company’s scheme. Employees are entitled to
accumulate leaves subject to certain limit as pet Company’s scheme.

Liabilities for compensated absence that ate not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the
end of the petiod in which the employees rendered the related setvice, are measured at the present value
of expected future payment to be made in respect of service provided by employees up to the end of
reporting petiod using the projected unit credit method. The benefit are discounted using the market yields
at the end of reporting petiod. Remeasurement as a result of expetience adjustments and change in
actuarial assumptions atre recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Employee benefits in the form of long service awards is provided as per Company scheme. The liability is
determined through actuarial valuation using projected unit credit method.

2.11. Taxes on income

Income tax expense comptises current and deferred income tax. Income tax cxpense is recognized in net
profit in the Statement of Profit and Loss cxcept to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly
in equity, in which case it is recognized in other comptehensive income. Current income tax for current
and ptiot periods is recognized at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities,
using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date.
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities ate rccognized for all temporary differences atising between the
tax bascs of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Defertred tax assets
are reviewed at each reporting date and ate reduced to the extent that it is no longet probable that the
related tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities ate measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted
ot substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable income in the yeats
in which those temporary diffetrences are expected to be recoveted ot settled. The effect of changes in tax
rates on deferred income tax assets and liabilities is recognized as income ot expense in the petiod that
includes the enactment or the substantive enactment date. A deferred income tax asset is recognized to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporaty differences and tax losses can be utilized.

The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right
to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, ot to realize the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.
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2.12, Bortowing costs

Botrowing costs ditectly atttibutable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which ate assets that necessatily take a substantial petiod of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time the assets ate substantially ready for their intended
use ot sale.

Intetest income earned on the temporaty investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other botrowing costs ate tecognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they
are incurred. '

2.13. Earings per shate

Basic earnings pet share is calculated by dividing profit or loss attributable to the owners of the Company
by weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year. The weighted average
numbet of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events of bonus issue, share split and
any new equity issue.

Fort the purpose of calculating diluted eatnings per share, profit or loss attributable to the owners of the
Company and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the
effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.14. Impairment of assets

The cartying values of propetty, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets or cash
generating units are reviewed at each Balance sheet date for impairment. If any indication of impairment
exists, the recoverable amount of such assets is estimated and impairment is recognised, if the carrying
amount of these assets exceeds their recoverable amount. The recovetrable amount is the greater of the
net selling ptice and their value in use. Value in use is arrived at by discounting the future cash flows to
their present value based on an approptiate discount factor. When there is indication that an impairment
loss trecognised for an asset in eatlier accounting petiods no longer exists or may have decreased such
reversal of impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets
measured at amortised cost. Loss allowance for trade teceivables with no significant financing component
is measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit loss.

2.15. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are
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2.16. Contingent liabilities

A disclosute for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
that may, but probably will not require an outflow of resources.

When thete is a possible obligation ot a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood on outflow
of resoutces is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

2.17 Segment repotting

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it
may earn revenues and incut expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with
any of the Company’s other components, and for which discrete financial information is available. The
Company is ptimarily engaged in the manufacturing and assembling of automotive components for the
automotive industry. All operating segments’ opetating results are reviewed regularly by the Company’s
Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”) to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the
segments and assess their petformance. CODM believes that these are governed by same set of risk and
returns hence CODM reviews as one balance sheet component.

2.18 Recent pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended
31 March 2025, MCA has notified Ind AS — 117 Insurance Contracts and amendments to Ind AS 116 —
Leases, relating to sale and leaseback transactions, applicable to the Company w.c.f. 01 April 2024. The
Company has reviewed the new pronouncements and based on its evaluation has determined that it does
not have any significant impact in its financial statements.
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3. Property, plant and equipment

Projects tenporarily suspended

Rs. million
Particulars Buildings Pla‘nt and Furniture and fixtures Vehicles Q(ﬁce Total
Year ended 31 March 2024
Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount 16,93 - - 16.93
Additions 132.94 205.84 LT 0.05 393 344.50
Disposals -
Closing gross carrying amount as at 31 March 2024 149.87 205.84 1.74 0.05 3.93 361.43
Accumulated depreciation
Opening accumulated 0.00 - . 0.00
Depreciation charged during the year 0.68 0.48 0.90 0.00 1.84 3.89
Disposals
Closing accumulated depreciation as at 31 March 2024 0.68 0.48 0.90 0.00 1.84 3.89
Net carrying amoust as at 31 March 2024 149.19 205.36 0.84 0.05 2,09 357.53
Year ended 31 March 2025
Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount 149.87 205.84 1.74 0.05 393 36143
Additions 58.73 266.43 3.20 430 33272
Disposals - 0.20 0.68 0.88
Closing pruss cacrying amount as at 31 March 2025 208.60 472.27 1.74 0.05 7.61 693.27
Opening accumulated depreciation 0.68 048 0.90 0.00 1.84 3.89
Depreciation charged during the year 5.92 3352 1.77 0.01 2.75 43.97
Disposals - - 0.09 - 031 040
Clpsing ue lated depreciation as ar 31 March 2025 6.60 34.00 2.58 0.01 4.28 47.46
Net carrving amount as at 31 March 2025 202.00 438.27 2.16 0.04 333 645.81
Notes:
1) The Company has not revalued property, plant and equipment during the year.
i) The title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date.
iii) The above assets are pledged as security against borrowings, refer note 17.
4. Capital work-in progress
i As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Particulars - ATS
Rs. million Rs. million
Balance at the beginuing of the year 161.02 099
Additions during the year 252.47 488.31
Capitalised / adjusted during the year (217.29) (328 28)
Balance at the end of the year 196.20 161.02
Note: The capital-wotk-in-progress mainly consist of property, plant and equipment under construction / installation and which are not ready foc use at year end.
_Capital worl in progress ageing schedule is us under:- Rs. million
As on 31 March 2025
Particulars Amount in capital work in progress for a period of
More than 3! Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years
vears
Projects in progress™* 196.20 - 196.20
Proiects temporarily suspended =
*'The projects in progress as on 31 Macch 2025 will be completed within 1 year.
)There are no such projects under capital-work-in progress, whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan as of 31 Macch 2025 and 31 March 2024,
i) The above assets are pledged as security against borrowings, refer note 17.
Capital work in progress ageing schedule is as under:- Rs. million
As on 31 March 2024
Parucalars Amount in capital work in progress for a period of
More than 3 Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years
vears
Projects in progress* 161,02 161.02
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5. Intangible assets Rs. million
Particulars Computer software  Grand Total

Year ended 31 March 2024

Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amount 0.13 013

Additions e

Disposals -

Closing gross carrying amount as at 31 March 2024 0.13 0.13

Accumulated amostisation
Opening accumulated amortisation -

Amortisation charged during the year 0.02 0.02
Disposals - -
Closing accumulated depteciation as at 31 March 2024 0.02 0.02
Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2024 0.11 0.11
Year ended 31 March 2025

Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amount 0.13 0.13
Additions 0.27 0.27
Disposals - -
Closing gross carrying amount as at 31 March 2025 0.40 0.40
Accumulated amortisation

Opening accumulated amortisation 0.02 0.02
Amortisation charged during the year 0.11 0.11
Disposals - -
Closing accumulated depreciation as at 31 March 2025 0.13 0.13
Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2025 0.27 0.27

6. Right of use assets

Rs. million

Particulars Land Total
Year ended 31 March 2024
Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount 280.77 280.77
Additions - -
Disposals 1.93 1.93
Closing gross carrying amount as at 31 March 2024 278.84 278.84
Accumulated amortisation
Opening accumulated amortisation 0.17 0.17
Amortisation charged during the year 2.86 2.86
Disposals - =
Closing accumulated depreciation as at 31 March 2024 3.03 3.03
Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2024 275.81 275.81
Year ended 31 March 2025
Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount 278.84 278.84
Additions =
Disposals - -
Closing gross carrving amount as at 31 March 2025 278.84 278.84
Accumulated amortisation
Opening accumulated amortisation 3.03 3.03
Amortisation charged during the year 2.85 2.85
Disposals - =
Closing accumulated depreciation as at 31 March 2025 5.88 5.88

Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2025 272.96 272.96
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7. Investments

Asat As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Non-current investments (Unquoted) No. of shares Rs. million No. of shares Rs. million
Equity instrument:
Investment in a subsidiary carried at amortised cost
SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited (formerly EMF Innovations
. - . 5 ,16,34,499 464,
Private Limited) (fully paid up of Rs 10 each) 1,16,34,499 LieLo i 4 Liesii
SPR Takahata Precision India Private Limited (formerly Takahata
L . . : 11,37,70, 634.
Precision India Private Limited) (fully paid up of Rs 10 each)* 11,37,70,000 63198 £t 2600
SPR TGPEL Precision Engineering Limited (formerly TGPEL
Precision Engineering Limited) (fully paid up of Rs 10 each) (refer 3,95,81,260 2,176.23
note 45)**
4,273.12 2,099.00

*Reduction in investment value in SPR Takahata Precision India Private Limited is on account of amount received from selling shareholders of SPR Takahata Precision
India Private Limited towards post-closing adjustments in terms of Share Purchase Agreement as under:-

- Rs. 0.07 million from Takahata Precision Co. Limited, Japan
- Rs. 2.04 million from Takahata Precision Pte. Limited, Singapoce

Current investment (Unquoted) As at As at
Carried at fair value through Statement of Profit and loss 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Investment in Mutual fund (Liquid fund) Units of Face value of Rs. miltion Rs. million
Rs 1000 each
- 44,858.23 units (previous year: Nil) Axis Liquid Fund Direct Growth 129.35
- 6,443.49 units (previous year: Nil) UTT Overnight Fund - Direct Plan Growth 22.52
- 104.50 units (previous year: Nil) LD57G SBI Overnight Fund Direct Growth 0.43
- Nil (previous year: 72,616.43 units) UTI Liquid Fund - Direct Plan Growth - 287.41
- Nil (previous year: 50,153.01 units) HSBC Liquid Fund-Direct Growth - 120.67
152.30 408.08
Aggregate book value of unquoted investments 151.53 405.31
Aggregate market value of unquoted investments 15230 408.08
Aggregate value of impairment in value of investments -
8. Other financial Assets
(At amortised cost) As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Non-current: Rs. million Rs. million
Security deposits (refer note 40) 3.45 333
Derivative instrument-call option asset (refer note 40) 59.00 41.00
62.45 44.33
Current:
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 3.60 5.23
3.60 5.23

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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9. Deferred tax assets (net)

Asat
Rs. million
Deferred tax liability
Impact of diffe el tax depreciation and
depreciation/ amortisation charged in books 022
0.22)
Deferred 1ax assets
Unabsorbed depreciation 0.05
Carried forward business loss 207
Pre-incorporation expenses 282
494
Net deferred tax assets/ (liability)* 4.72

As at

Re. million

(0.22)
0.05
207
282
4.94

4.72

*On account of lack of virtual certainty of future taxable income,future deferced tax asset on losses has not been recognised during the year ended 31 March 2025.

10. Other non-current assets

(Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise) Asat
31 March 2025
Res. million
i) Capiml advances 57.63
ii) Prepaid expenses 0.28
iii) Balance with government authorities 1.7
59.62

11, Other current assets
(Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise)

i) Advances other than capital advances 441
ii) Balance with government authorities 114.21
iii) Prepaid expenses 0.36

118.98

(This spare has been intentionally left blank)
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Re. million
47.73
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48.90
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78.61
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12. Inventories
(valued at lower of cost or net realisable value)

Raw material and components

(includes in transit Rs. 0.00 million (previous year: Rs. 1.00 million))
Work-in-progress

(includes in transit Rs. nil million (previous year: Rs. nil million))
Finished goads

(includes in transit Rs. nil million (previous yeac: Rs. nil million))
Stores and sparcs

(includes in transit Rs. 3.68 million (previous year: Rs. nil million))
Loose tools

i) The inventories are hypothecated as security against borrowings, refer note no 17.

13, Trade receivables

Current

Trade receivables considered good - Secured

Trade receivables considered gond - Unsecured*
Receivables which have significant increase in credit sk
Credit impaired

*There is no trade receivable which have significant increase in credit risk.

Agp at

31 March 2025

Rs. million
8.55

15.77

0.01

17.67

8.22
50.22

As at

31 March 2025

Rs. million

47.81

47.81

*No teade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person.
*Trade receivables includes Rs.1.49 million (previous year: Rs 1.14 million) due from related parties (refer note 33).

Trade receivable ageing us at 31 March 2025 is as under:

As at

31 March 2024

Rs. million
2.02

0.01

4.06

0.57

6.66

As at

31 March 2024

Rs. million

Rs. million

Unbilled

dues Not due

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than

6 months

6 months
-1year

1-2
years

2-3
years

More than
3 years

Total

(1) Undisputed trade receivables — considered good - 22.41

25.30

0.10

47.81

(ii) Undisputed trade receivables —which have significant
increase in credit risk

(iii) Undisputed trade receivables — credit impaired =

(iv) Disputed trade receivables—considered good -

(v) Disputed trade receivables — which have significant
increase in credit risk

(vi) Disputed trade receivables — credit impaired

Total - 22.41

25.30

0.10

47.81

i) The trade receivables are hypothecated as security against borrowings, refer note no 17.

Trade receivable ageing as at 31 March 2024 is as under:

Rs. million

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Unbilled 10t due  Less than 6 months . 2-3 More than
Dues years Total
6 months -1year years 3 years
years
(i) Undisputed trade receivables — considered good 4.78 - - 4.78
(i) Undisputed trade receivables —which have significant R
increase in credit risk
(1) Undisputed trade receivables — ceedit impaired - - - 5 g B
(iv) Disputed trade recevables—considered good - - - - - - - -
(v) Disputed trade receivables — which have significant
increase in credit risk = -
(vi) Disputed trade receivables — credit impaired . = - - -
Total - 4.78 - - - - - 4.78
14. Cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances
As at As at
31 Masch 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. million Rs. million
i) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand - -
- current accounts 32.53 5.04
32.53 5.04
ii) Other bank balances
- Deposit with original maturity more 250.00 70.00
than 3 months but less than 12 months
- Deposit held as margin 78.00 69.53
328.00 139.53
360.53 144.57

0
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15. Equity share capital

Authorised Shaces

60,49,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each (previous year
35,49,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each)

1,00,000 preference share of Rs.10 each (previous year 1,00,000
cquity shares of Ra. 10 each)

a. Lsmued , subscdbed and fully puid ap ghates
60,00,00,000 cquity shares of Rs. 10 each (previous year
35,00,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each)

b, Terms/righta attached 1o equity shares

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. million Rs. million

6,049.00 3,549.00

1.00 1.00
6,050.00 3,550.00
o ML 3,500.00
6, (00,00 3,500.00

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share, Each holder of equity share is entitled to dividend and one vote per share. In the event of liquidation,
the equity shareholders are cligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amount, in proportion to their sharcholding:

c. Reconciliation of numbers of equity shares ding at the beginning and at the end of reporting year
Asat As at
Authorised equity capital 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
No. of shares Rs. million No. of shares Re. million
Opening balance 35,49,00,000 3,549.00 12,49,00,000 1,249.400
Increase during the year 25,00,00,000 2,500.00 23,00,00,000 2,300.00
Closing balance 60,49,00,000 6,049.00 35,49,00,000 3,549.00
Asat As at
Authorised preference share capital 31 Macch 2025 31 March 2024
No. of shares Rs. million No. of shares Rs. million
Opening balance 1,00,000 1.00 1,00,000 1.00
Increase during the year . .
Closing balance 1,00,000 1.00 1,00,000 1.00
As at As at
1ssued equity capital 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
No. of shares Re. million No. of shares Rs. million
Opening balance 35,00,00,000 3,500.00 12,00,00,000,00 1,200.00
Add: Issued during the year® 25,00, H0,000 250000 29, LM 01, M 2500001
Closing balance 60,00,00,000 6,000,00 35,00,00,000 3,500.00
*During the current year, the Company has issued 25,00,00,000 equity shares to the Holding Company
d, Details of equity shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
No. of shares % shareholding No. of shares % shareholding
Eauity shares of Re. 10 eauly fully paid
Shriram Pistons & Rings Limited * 60,00,00,000 100.00 35,00,00,000 100.00
* including nominee shareholders
€) Details of shares held by promoters at the end of the year
As at Asatl
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
o o i
Name of promotor No. of shares % shareholding A’ Change No. of shares % shareholding s Change during
duri the year

ng the year
Shriram Pistons & Rings Limited * -
* including nominee shareholders

60,00,00,000 100.00

35,00,00,000 100.00 -

£) The Company has not issued any bonus shares nor there has been any buyback of shares nor any shares has been allotted as fully paid up pursuants to contracts without payment being

received in cash since incorporation of the Company.

16. Other equity Rs. million
Paniculars Rencnlre St murplus Total
Retulned eamings
Balance as at 31 March 2023 (14.22) (14,22)
Lt foe the year {499 (5.99)
Expunses oiissue of share capitl [l (20,70
Other'c mwome far the year .03 0,03
Balunce as at 31 March 2024 (40.87) (40.87)
Lisay for the year (50.55) (56.55
Excpenses on tsuc of share capral ({4.80) (4.80) |
Other comprehensive meotne for the year, net of tax 0.37 0.37
Balunce as at 31 March 2025 (101,85) (101.85)

i3 activities. Also includes te-measurement gains or loss on defined benefit plans
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17. Borrowings Asat As at
(At amortised cost) _ 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. million Re. million
N-CUI]|
Secured
Term loans from bank 200.00
200.00
Less: Current maturities of non-current borrowings (refer note 18) 10.00
190.00

i) Term loans from bank of Rs. 200.00 million (previous year: Rs. Nil) are secured by way of first pari passu charge on all the movable and immovable property of the Company, present and future and second pari passu charge
on wnventories and trade receivables of the compuny, present and future.

Repayment period Effective Rate of Interest
iginad 1lm.
Amount outstanding from ((;l:;g::)auon Installments per annum
As at As at Outstanding Periodicity %
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 No. Asat As at
(R inillion) (R mllion) - 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

200.00 6* a0 Quarterly 8.16 =

200.00 =

“Ther pay period includ ium of 1 year from the date of origination )

ii) Disclosure under Para 444 as set out in Ind AS on cash flow statements under Companies ( Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2017 ( as amended) is given below:

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities Rs. million
: o ding bal ason | Netp ds / Outstanding balance as on
Particular 01 April 2024 (repayment ) Non-cash changes 31 March 2025
I.i.oll’\g term borrowings ( Including current maturites of long term 200.00 200.00
el
Lease liabilities 19.18 (1.92) 1.92 19.18
18, Short-term borrowings
(At amortised cost) As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. million Rs. million
Secured
Curtrent maturities of non-current borrowings (refer note 17) 10.00

10.00

(This pace ha been imtentionally left blank)
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Asat As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. million Rs. million
Non-current
Provision for compensated absences (refer note 34) 318 177
Psovision for gratuity (refec note 34) 442 3.51
7.60 5.28
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Cujyrent Rs. million Rs. million
Provision for compensated absences (refer note 34) 1.7 1.24
Provision for gratuity (refer note 34) 0.22 0.17
1.93 141
20. Trade payables
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. million Rs. million
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 243 0.41
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 45.50 38.49
47.93 38.90
Trade ing scl t 31 March 2025 is as under:
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Unbilled dues Not due
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3years  More than 3 years Total
1) MEME - 1.k6 057 - 243
(i) Dispruted dues — MSME - - - -
(in) Chthees - 3740 LBE 322 = 45,501
(viDispued  dues - Others - - - - -
- 39.26 5.45 A2 - - 47.93
Trade payahle agei 1 31 March i s wnider:
Outstanding for following perods from due date of payment
Particulars Unbilled dues Not due
Tess than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3years  More than 3 years Total
() MSML 040 o S (e
(1) Disputed dues — MSMIE - =
(i) Orthers - 1326 s ek - AR
(w)Disputed  duegs - Others - - - B E
> 13.66 529 = = 38,90
Trade payable includes Rs. 0.47 million (previous year Rs. 3.69 million) due to related parties (efer note 34)
21. Other financial liabilities
(At amortised cost) As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. million Rs. million
Capital creditors 64.47 11015
Iaterest accrued but not due on borrowings 1.36
Employee related payables 4.93 2.26
70.76 112.41
22, Other liabilities
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. million Rs. million
Revenue received in advance (refer note 23) 132
Statutory dues payable 1.72 3.05
3.04 3.05

ive hus been intentionally left blank)
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23. Revenue from operations

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. Million Rs. Million
Sale of products 175.87 271
Other operating revenues
-Sale of scrap 0.96 -
176.83 2n
Timing of revenue recognition:
Goods transferred at a point in time 176,83 271
Contract balances
Revenue received in advance (refer note 22) 132
Contract liabilities - Revenue received in advance
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. million Rs. million
Opening bal of liabilities
Less: Amount of tevenue recognised against opening contract liabilities
Add: Addition in balance of contract liabilities for current year (net of refunds) 1.32
Closing balance of contract liabilities 1.32
Reconciling the amount of sale of products gnised in the stat t of profit and loss with the contracted price
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. million Rs. million
Revenue from contract with customer as per the contract price 183.56 2.85
Adj) ts made to price on of :-
Less: Discounts 7.69 014
Revenue from contract with customers 175.87 271

Performance obligation

Information about the Company’s performance obligation from the sale of products is summarised below:
Sale of products

Revenue from the sale of product is recognized upon transfer of control to customers.

24. Other income

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. million Rs. million
Interest income*
- Bank deposits 9.11 1172
- Others 026 0.01
loreign exchange fluctuation gain (net) 0.11 0.81
Net gain on sale/fair valuation of current investment** 18.95 19.12
Gain on sale/disposal of property, plant and equipment 0.09
Other non-operating income*** 3095 -
59.47 31.66

*Underlying assets on which income is recognised at amortised cost.

**Underlying assets on which income is recognised at fair value through profit and loss. Includes Rs.0.77 million (previous year Rs. 2.77
million) on account of fair valuation of investments.

##+[ncludes income of Rs 18.00 million on account of fair value gain on call option asset and Rs, 12.89 million from cross charge on account
of resource sharing,

25, Cost of material consumed

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. million Rs. million
Cost of raw material and components consumed 69.28 0.76
Cost of packing material consumed 6.78 0.03
76.06 0.79
26. (I )/ d in i ies of finished goods and work-in-progress
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. million Rs. million
Inventories at the end of the year
Work-in-progress 1577 0.01
Finished goods 0.01
15.78 0.01
Inve ies at the beginning of the year
Work-in-progress 0.01
L'ushed goods
0.01 -

(15.77) (0.01)
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27. Employee benefits expense

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. million Rs. million
Salaries and wages 36.74 13.53
Contrbution to provident and other funds (refer note 34) 212 0.43
Staff welfare expenses 3.82 0.11
42.68 14.07
28. Finance costs
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. million Rs. million
Iaterest expense on borrowing 4.07
Interest expense on lease liabilities (refer note 35) 1.92 1.92
Interest expense on inter-corporate borrowings 0.01 1.65
6.00 3.57
29, Depreciation and amortisation expense
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. million Rs. million
- Depreciation on property , plant and equipment (refer note 3) 43.97 3.90
- Depreciation on right of use assets (gefer note 6) 2.85 2.86
- Depreciation on intangible assets (cefer note 5) 0.1 0.02
46.93 6.78
30. Other expenses
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. million Rs. million
Stores and spares consumed 39.94 230
Power and fuel 2111 0.40
Repair and maintenance
- Plant and machinery 716 0.40
- Buildings 3.15 0.14
- Others 0.62 0.03
Rates and taxes 2.32 251
Security expenses 427 0.04
Manufacturing Expenses 1.98 -
Freight expenses 3.05 0.02
Auditor's remuneration(refet note 31) 0.47 0.47
Sub-contracting expenses 25.21 -
Legal and professional expenses 8.56 4.31
Office and general administration expense 2.87 1.89
Travelling expenses 1.82 1.26
Rent(refer note 35) 1.25 0.34
Miscellancous expenses 717 1.05
136.95 15.16
31. Auditor's remuneration
(excluding goods and service tax, as applicable) Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. million Rs. million
As auditor;
- Audit fee 0.23 0.23
- Limited review 0.22 0.22
- Reimbursement of expenses 0.02 0.02
0.47 0.47
32, Earnings per share
Year ended Ycar cnded
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Loss attributable to equity shareholders (Rs. million) (56.18) (5.96)
Weighted average number of equity shares (no. of shares) 41,64,93,151 19,32,60,274
Eamings per share
- Basic (Rs) 0.14) (0.03)
- Diluted (Rs.) 0.14) 0.03)
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A, List of related parties:

Holding company

Subsidiary companies

Key management personnel

B. Related party transactions
(i) Transactions during the year

's related parties and transactions with them are disclosed below :

Shriram Pistons & Rings Lirmuted

SPR EMF Innovations Private Limited

SPR Takahata Precision India Private Limited (w.e.f 16 October 2023)

SPR TGPEL Precision Engineering Limited (w.e.f 24 December 2024) (formerly TGPEL

Precision Engineering Limited)

Shri Krishnakumar Srinivasan, Whole-time Director
Shri Luv Deepak Shricam
Smt Meenakshi Dass

s, ilian
Particulars Holdiug Company Subsidiary Tl
31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2025 | 31March 2024 | 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Share capital allotment 2,500.00 2,300.00 2,500.00 2,300.00
Investment 2,174.12 1,318.97 2,174.12 1,318.97
Loan taken during period 22.50 148 40 - - 2250 148.40
Loan repaid during period 2250 14840 - 2250 148.40
Interest paid on Inter-corporate loan 001 1.65 001 1.65
Antount paid for resources and facilities received 3.00 3.00 12.89 15.89 3.00
Amount paid towards re-imbursement of expenses 2,66 5.53 266 5.53
Amount received towards re-imbursement of expenses 0.00 114 000 L
Amount paid towards marketing commsston 081 003 081 0.03
Amount paid towards lease rental 0.85 0.26 085 0.26
Purchase of goods/capital goods 28 80 5.46 2880 5.46
(ii) Balances due from/to the related parties
Particulars Holding Company Subsidiary Total
31 March 2025 | 31March 2024 | 31 March 2025 | 31March 2024 | 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Amount payable/ (recoverable) 047 160 1.49) (1,14 (1.03) 255

Note :

All the transaction with the related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and will be settled in cash. No expenses
has been recognized in the curtent year in respect of bad or doubtful debts/advances and further no specific provision for doubtful debts/advances has been made in respect of outstanding balances.
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34. Employee benefits

The Company has classified the various employee benefits as under :

Defined contribution plang
The Company has recognised the following amount in the statement of profit and loss:

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Rs. million Rs. million
Employers' contribution to provident fund 1.25 0.31
Lmployers' contribution to state insurance fund 0.02

1.27 0.31

Defined benefit plans - Gratuity

In accordance with Ind AS 19, actuarial valuation of defined benefit plans was done for Gratuity and details of the same are given
below :

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. million Rs. million

Amount recognized in statement of Profit & Loss

Current service cost 0.53 0.08
Net Interest cost on defined benefit/ Liability 0.29 0.04
Total expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 0.82 0.12
Net asset / (liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet

Present value of defined benefit obligation 4.64 3.68
Fair value of plan assets -
Funded status [surplus / (deficit)] (4.64) (3.68)
Net asset / (liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet (4.64) (3.68)

Change in defined benefit obligations (DBO) during the year

Present value of defined benefit obligations at beginning of the year 3.68
Current service cost 0.53 0.08
Interest cost 0.29 0.04

Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations (Actuarial (gains)/losses)

- Changes in demographic assumptions -

- Changes in financial assumptions 0.27)

- Experience variance (0.10) 0.03)
Benefits paid - -
Transfer in 0.51 3.59
Present value of DBO at the end of the year 4.64 3.68

Provision for gratuity

Non-current (refer note 19) 4.42 3.51

Current (refer note 19) 0.22 0.17

Change in fair value of plan assets during the year

Plan assets at beginning of the year

Expected return on plan assets

Contributions

Actuarial gain / (loss) - -

Return on Plan assets excluding amount recognised in net interest expenses

Benefits paid - -

Plan assets at the end of the year - -

Actual return on plan assets

Amount recognised in other comprehensive income

Actuaial (gains)/ losses

- Changes in demographic assumptions -

- Changes in financial assumptions 0.27)
- . (0.10) (0.03)

0.37) (0.03)
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Year ended Year ended
Actuarial assumptions for Gratuity 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Discount rate 6.75% 7.15%
Salary escalation 8.00% 9.00%
Attrition 5%pa 5%pa
Mortality table used 100% of IALM 2012~ 100% of IALM
14 2012-14

Estimate of the future salary increase is based on factors such as inflation, seniority, promotions, demand and supply in employment market

Sensitivity Analysis for significant actuarial assumptions Year ended 31 March 2025 Year ended 31 March 2024
Impact on Liability Tmpact on Liability
Particulars Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Rs. million Rs. million Rs. million Rs. million
Discount Rate +100 basis points +100 basis points 0.42 0.37
.100 basis points 100 basis points 0.48 0.42
Salary Growth Rate  +100 basis points +100 basis points 0.47 0.41
' -100 basis points '-100 basis points 0.42 0.36
Attriion Rate +100 basis points +100 basis points 0.09 0.10
"-100 basis points '-100 basis points 0.11 0.13
Mortality Rate* +100 basis points +100 basis points 0.00 0.00
' -100 basis points '-100 basis points 0.00 0.00

* Rounded off to zero.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other
assumptinns constant. The sensitivity analysis present above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined ubligation as it is unlikely that the
change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be co-related.

Risk factors in actuarial assumptions
Interest rate risk: The plan exposes the Company to the risk of fall in interest rates. A fall in interest rates will result in an increase in the ultimate cost of
providing the above benefit and will thus result in an increase in the value of the liability

Liquidity risk: This is the tisk that the Company is not able to meet the short term gratuity payouts. This may arise due to non availability of enough cash/
cish equivalent to meet the liabilities or holding of illiquid assets not being sold in time.

Salary escalation risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of plan participants in future.
Deviation in the rate of increase of salary in future for plan participants from the rate of increase in salary use to determine the present value of obligatdon will
have a beating on the plan's liability.

Demographic risk: The Gompany has used certain tmortality and attrition assumption in valuation of the liability. The Company is exposed to the risk of
uetual expericnee tuming out to be worse compared to the assumption.

Asset Liability Mismatching or Market risk: The dutation of the liability is longer compared to duration of asscts, exposing the Company to market risk for
volatilities/ fall in interest rate.

Investment risk: ‘The probability or likelihood of occurrence of losses telative to the expected return on any particular investment.

The following payments are expected future cash flows to the defined benefit plan (undi d in future years):

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Rs. million Rs. million
Year 1 0.22 017
Year 2 - 5 Yeats 1.21 0.75
Year 6 and above 1.96 1.22
More than 10 years 6.37 6.72

Regulatory framework/ Governance / benefits under the plan:

The gratuity benefit is a post employment benefit. It is calculated at the terminal salary (Basic+VDA) at the time of separation of the employee according to the
provisions of Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.

5 Compnscd s saEe, Jeon
Present value of defined benefit obligation 4.89 3.01
Funded status [surplus / (deficit) 4.89 3.01

tp]

iv) Provision for compeneated absences
Non-current (refer note 19) 3.18 1.77
Curtent (refer note 19) 1.71 124

o\ New Deili /.~
4%
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35, Leases :
The changes in the carrying value of right of use assets for the year ended 31 March 2025 are as follows:
Rs. million
Particulars Right-of-use asset
Land
Balance as at 01 April 2023 280.60
Addition .
Deletion (1.93)
Amortisation of right-of-use asset 2.
Balance as of 31 March 2024 275.81
Balance as at 01 April 2024 275.81
Addition
Deletion
Amortisation of right-of-use asset (2.85
Balance as of 31 March 2025 272.96
The movement in Jease liabilities during the year ended 31 March 2025 is as follows:
Year ended Year ended
3] March 2025 31 March 2024
Ite. million Rs. million
Balance at the beginning 19.18 21.10
Additions
Deletions - (1.92)
Finance cost accrued during the period 1.92 1.92
Payment of lease liabilities (1.92) (1.92)
Bulance at the end 19.18 19.18
The break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities as of 31 March 2024 is as follows:
_ Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 Mareh 2024
Hea. million Rs, million
Current¥ 0.00 0.00
Non-current _ 1918 19.18
Total 19.18 19.18
“Rounded off to zero.
The details of contractual matuities of lease liabilities on an undiscounted basis:
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 3t March 2024
s, million s million
Less than one year 1.92 1.92
One to five years 9.59 9.59
More than five years 174.55 176.47
Total 1806 187,98
The following are the recognised in S of Profit or Loss:
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 3 March 2024
R, million Rs, million
Depreciation expense of right of use assets 286 286
Interest expenses on lease liabilitics 1.92 1,92
Espense relating to other than ion- current leases (included in other expenses) # 1.25 034
Total ised in § of Profit or Loss 6.03 5.12

# Lease payments not recognised as a liability

[he Comjrany has elected not 1o recognise a lease lability fior exirzent leases (leases with an expected term of 12 months or less) or fur leases uf low value assets.
Payments made under such leases are expensed on a straight-line bassy. The Company does not have any liability to make variable lcase payments for the right-to-
use the underlying asset recognised in the financials,

Total cash outflow for current Jeases and leases of low value for the year ended 31 March 2025 was Rs 1.25 million (31 March 2024 Rs 0.34 million).

The Company’s leasing activities by type and nature of right-of-use asset recognised on balance sheet is given below:-

No. of right of  Ranyre of remuining Average remaitiing

use assets leased I (in years) lease yevm
crm ¥ (in years)

Land

- 31 March 2025 1 96 96

- 31 March 2024 1 97 97

The Company does not face significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities to meet the obligations related to lease liabilities as and whe they fall due.

36. Capital and other commitments

As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Ro. million Rs, million
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account 156.53 93.72

(net of advances).

|)'®uEIINJ)FLPJ aetits, ot purchase /| sales orders which a
hweg-iene ity ety T b
1 L'com.zrimn] col :'llni't!
| KG.Marg =
0.\ New Delhi />
ON A A

re issued after considering requirements as per operating cycle for purchase / sale of
The Company does not have any other long term commitments or material
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37. Micro, Small and Medium enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act

"The status of vendors under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED) Act, 2006 is based on certificate submitted by
vendors about their coverage under the provisions of MSMED Act, 2006.

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. million Rs. million
Amount remaining unpaid to suppliers under MSMED as at the end of year

- Principal amount * 11.49 7.63
- Interest due thereon - -

Amount of payments made to suppliers beyond the appointed day during the year
- Principal amount 1.37
- Interest actually paid under section 16 of MSMED : :

Amount of interest due and payable for delay in payment (which has been paid but beyond the
appointed day during the year) but without adding interest under MSMED

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year
- Interest accrued during the year
- Interest remaining unpaid as at the end of the year = -

Interest remaining disallowable as deductible expenditure under the Income-tax Act, 1961

*Includes capital creditors Rs. 9.06 million (previous year Rs. 7.22 million) and and security deposits of nil (previous year nil).

38, Segment Information
The Company is engaged in a single segment ie. the bissiness of "automotive components" from where it is earning itg revenue and incurring
expense. The opérating results are regularly reviewed and peeformance is assessed by ity Cl iief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). All the

Geographical information in respect of sale of products from customers is given below

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. million Rs. million
Domestic 175.87 27
Export - E
175.87 2.71
Notes:

a) During the year ended 31 March 2025, one customer amounts to Rs 102.99 million (previous year: 2.15 million) represents 10% or more of
the Company’s revenue from operations.

b) There are no non-current assets domiciled outside India.

39, The Company is availing the exemption from consolidation of financial statements under Second Proviso to Rule 6 of Companies
Account Rules, 2016 and paragraph 31 of Ind AS-110. Financial statements prepared by the Company are separate Financial Statements.




40. Fair value measurement

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

SPR Engenious Limited

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as of 31 March 2025 are as under:

Rs. million

Financial assets/
: (financial liabilities) at . T i val
Particulars fair value Total carrying value otal fair value

Financial assets/(financial liabilities)
Tnvestment in mutual fund* 152.30 152.30 152.30
Security deposits 3.45 3.45 3.45
Derivative instrument-
Call option asset**(refer note 8) 59.00 59.00 59.00
Total 214.75 214.75 214.75
The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as of 31 March 2024 are as under:

Rs. million

Financial assets/
Particulars (ﬁnanCla.l liabilities) at| 7., carrying value Total fair value
fair value

Financial assets/ (financial liabilities)
Investment in mutual fund* 408.08 408.08 408.08
Security deposits 333 3.33 3.33
Derivative instrument-
Call option asset**(refer note 8) 41.00 41.00 41.00
Total 452.41 452.41 452.41

* The fair values are based on net asset value.

** The fair valuation of call option asset is based on the simulated EBITDA using Monte Carlo simulation.

ii) Fair value hicrarchy

The Company uses the following hicrarchy for determining and/or disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation techniques:

The following is the basis of categorising the financial instruments measured at fair value into Level 1 to Level 3

Level 1 - This level includes financial assets that are measured by reference to quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical asscts or liabilities.

Level 2 — This level includes financial assets and liabilities, measured using inputs other than quated prices included within Level 1 that are abservable for the asset or liability,
either directly (Le. as prices) or Indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 - This level includes financial assets and liabilities, measured using inputs that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are
determined in whole or in part, using a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same

instrument nor are they based on available market data.

Fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of 31 March 2025

(Rs. million)
Tair value measurement at end of the reporting year using
Particulars As at 31 March 2025
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3#

Financial assets/ (liabilities)
Investment in mutual fund* 152.30 152.30 -
Security deposits** 3.45 - 345
Derivative instrument-
Call option asset¥**(refer note 8) 59.00 59.00 -
Total 214.75 - 211.30 3.45

Fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of 31 March 2024

(Rs, million)

Fair value measurement at end of the reporting year using
Particulars As at 31 March 2024
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3#

Financial assets/ (liabilities)
Investmenl in mutual fund* 408.08 = 408.08 -
Security deposits** 3.33 - = 3.33
Derivatives instruments
Call Option asset***(refer note 8) 41.00 - 41.00 -
Total 452.41 - 449.08 3.33

* The fair values are based on net asset value
**¥The fair value is based on

1 model which considers the present value of expected payment, discounted using a risk-adjusted discount rate. The own non-
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iii) Financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at amortised cost are :

Rz, million)
. Carrying amount

ety As at 31 March 2025 |As at 31 March 2024
Financial assets
‘Trade receivables 47.81 478
Cash and cash equivalents 32.53 5.04
Other bank balances 328.00 139.53
Other financial assets 3.61 523
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 200.00 -
Trade payables ; 4793 38.90
Lease lialilities 19.18 19.18
Other finnncinl liabilities 70.76 112.41
The carrying value of above financial assets and financial liabilities approximate its fair value.

41, Capital management

The Company’s objective for managing capital is to ensure as under:

i) Ensure the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern

ii) Maintain a strong debt equity and capital gearing ratio in order to support business and maximize the shareholders’ value.
i) Maintain an optimal capital structure.

iv) Compliance of financial covenants under the borrowing facilities.

The Company manages its capital structure keeping in view of:
i) Compliance of financial covenants under the borrowing facilities
ii) Changes in economic conditions

In order to achicve this overall objective of capital management, amongst other things, the Company aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the borrowings
facilities defining capital structure requirements, where breach in meeting the financial covenants may permit the lender to call the borrowings.

There have been no breach in the financial covenants of any borrowing facility in the current period. There is no change in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital over previous year.

For the purpose of capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company and net debt includes
total liabilities, comprising interest bearing loans and borrowings, excluding any dues to subsidiaries or group companics less cash and cash equivalents.

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the debt to capital ratio, which is calculated as interest-bearing debts adjusted with available cash and bank balances divided by
total capital (equity attributable to owners of the Company).

The funding requirement of the Company is primacily met through equity infusion by Holding Company,leading to a negative net debt position as under:-

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Rs. million Res. million
Borrowings (refer note 17) (including 200.00

current maturities)

Less: cash and cash ivalent (refe t
1:)85 cash anQ cas equtvaen (re er note 36053 14457

Net debt (160.53) (144.57)




42, Additional regulatory information

SPR Engenious Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Year ended Year ended
- . inat . o
Particulars Unit Numerator Denominator 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024 Variations (%)
Current ratio* Times Total current assets Total current liabilities 5.50 417 32%
Debt-equity ratio** ‘l'imes fpeh conatst 2l Total equity 0.03 -
borrowings
Earnings for debt Debt service =
Debt service coverage ratio*** Times service= Net. pfOﬁt afer] Jistenssgnd le.a . (0.60) 1.22 -149%
tax + depreciation + payments+ principal
interest repayments
Return on equity ratio*** % Profit for the year Average total equity (1.21) (0.26) -368%
Inventory turnover ratio*** Times Cost of goods sold Average inventory 1.17 0.12 911%
Trade receivables turnover ratio*** Times Sales of products Average trade receivab) 6.69 1.13 491%
. " i ial +
Trade payables turnover ratio*** Times oSt Bifmateaal ¥ oty Average trade payable 4.54 0.69 561%
expenses
Average working
Net capital turnover ratio*** Times Sales of products capital (te. total 0.32 0.01 2839%
current assets less total
current liabilities)
Net profit ratio*** %% Profit for the year Sales of products (0.32) (2.22) 85%
. Profit before tax and Capital employed =
Retu | loyed*** 21 0.83 0.07 - %
ERORISR EaE ER QN finance cost Net worth + Debt (0.83) ©.07) 10644
Incom ved from Average invested
Return on investment*** % jrcome generate funds in treasury 6.76 9.37 -28%
invested funds i
investment

*The variance is majorly on account of increase in current assets due to increase in level of operations as compared to the previous period.
**The variance is on account of term loan taken in current financial year.

*#*+The variance is majorly on account of increase in level of operations as compared to the previous period.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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43. Financial risk management

The Company’s principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise of loans and botrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities
is to finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents and loans that it derives
directly from its operations. The Company also holds FVTPL current investments and enters into derivative transactions.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, commodity price risk and other price risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the management of
these risks under appropriate policies and proceduces.

i) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises two types of
sisks, foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits, FVIPL curcent investments.

a) Foreign exchange risk

The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk through its purchases from oversess in foreign currencies mainly in USD and JPY. The Company has defined foreign
exchange risk management policy to mitigate the risk of changes in exchange rates on foreign currency exposures by entering into derivative financial instruments such as
foreign exchange forward contracts. The exchange rate between the rupee and foreign currencies has changed substantially in recent years and may fluctuate substantially in
the future. Consequently, the results of the Company’s operations may be adversely affected as the rupee appreciates/ depreciates against these currencies.

The Company is not exposed to any significant /material foreign exchange risk.

Sensitivity

Each percentage point change in the foreign exchange rates has an impact on profit before tax/total equity as follows:
Increase / (decrease)

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Rs. million Rs. million
Exchange rate - increase in by 1% - (0.06)
Exchange rate - decrease by 1% : 0.06

The Company’s foreign currency risk from financtal instcuments are as under

(Foreign curtency million)

Particulars Currency As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Total Hedged Net Total Hedged Net
Trade payables usD - - - 0.05 - 0.05
IPY - - - 4.28 - 4.28

b) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure
to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates. The Company manages its interest rate

risk by having a balanced portfolio of fixed and variable rate loans and borrowings.

The Company is not exposed to any significant /material interest rate risk.

ii) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to 2 financial loss. The Company is exposed to
credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange
transactions and other financial instcuments. Credit risk is managed by Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management.
Credit risk has always been managed by the Company through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the credit worthiness of customers to
which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. The Company uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss and makes an

allowance for doubtful debts using expected credit loss model on case to case basis. The Company doesn't have any expected credit loss as at 31 March 2025.
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iii) Liquidity risk
The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of inter-corporate borrowings and bank loans. Liquidity risk
is managed by Company’s established policy & procedures made under liquidity risk management framework. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate
reserves, banking facilities, and reserve borrowing facilites,by continuously forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profile of financial assets and
liabilities.
The financial assets and liabilities have been appropriately disclosed in financial statements as current and non-current portion. The maturity period of non-current financial
assets and liabilities ranges between 1 to 6 years except lease liabilities where period may vary as per respective lease agreement.

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Rs. million Rs. million

Less than 1 year
-Trade payables 47.93 38.90
-Lease liabilities* 0.00 0.00
-Other financial liabilities 70.77 112.41
-Current maturities of non- 10.00 P
current borrowings
More than 1 year
-Lease liabilities 19.18 19.18
-Term loans from bank 190.00

* Rounded off to zero.
iv) Commodity price risk

Commodity price sisk is the financial risk on the Company's profitability upon fluctuations in the prices of commodities since they are primarily driven by external market
forces. Sharp fAuctuations in commodity prices can affect production costs, product pricing and earnings. This price volatility makes it imperative for an entity to manage the
impact of commodity price fluctuations across its value chain to effectively manage its financial performance and profitability. To mitigate these risks, the Company employs
multiple levers, each chosen based on a cost benefit analysis and the extent of exposure to commodity price fluctuations. These include assessing the feasibility of passing any
adverse fluctuations onto customers through price increases, continuously engaging in cost optimisation initiatives and process improvement exercises. The Company also
explores options such as localizing imports/ implementing global sourcing strategies to ensure most cost effective sourcing. Based on the assessment by the Company and
after factoring the ability to optimise costs and pass on prices to customers, no Individual commodity is expected to have a significant adverse impact on the financial
pecformance/profitability.

v) Other price risks
The Company has deployed its surplus funds into various financial insttuments including units of mutual funds. The Company is exposed to NAV (net asset value) price
risks arising from investments in these funds. The value of these investments is impacted by movements in intecest rates , liquidity and credit quality of underlying securities.

44. The Company does not have any long term contracts for which there ace any material foreseeable losses.
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45.9) The Company received Rs. 2,300.00 million and Rs. 200.00 million from Shriram Pistons & Rings Limited (Holding Company) on 19 December 2024 and 04 March 2025,
respectively by way of subscription to equity share capital of the Company.

ii)The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 20 November 2024 had approved acquisition of 100 % equity stake in SPR TGPEL Precision Engineering
Limited (formerly TGPEL Precision Engincering Ltd). The Share Purchase Agreement to acquire 100% equity stake in SPR TGPEL Precision Engincering Limited was exccuted
on 10 December 2024, Accordingly, the Company acquired 100% stake in SPR TGPEL Precision Enginecring Limited on 24 December 2024 by investing Rs 2176.23 million.

46 Disclasure required under Sec 186(4) of the Companies Act 2013:

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Investments: Rs. million Rs. million
Investments at the beginning of the year 2,099.00 780.03
Investments made during the period-SPR EMFI = 700.00
Adjustments during the year - SPR EMFI* ] (15.12)
Investments made during the period-SPR TPIPL - 675.09
Adjustments during the year - SPR TPIPL** 211 (41.00)
Investments made during the period-SPR TGPEL 2,176.23 :
Investments at the end of the year 4,273.12 2,099.00

*Rs. 55.00 million were held back in financial year 2022-23 which were to be paid to sellers as per terms of the Share Purchase Subscription Agreement. On 01 February 2024, Rs.
39.88 million paid to sellers after adjustment of Rs. 15.12 million on account of closing adjustments as per terms of Share Purchase Subscription Agreement. This has resulted into
reduction m nvestments 1n SPR EMI Innovations Private Limited by Rs. 15.12 million,

** Financial year 2024-25

Reduction in investment value during the year ended 31 March 2025 in SPR Takahata Precision India Private Limited is on account of amount received from selling sharcholders
of SPR Takahata Precision India Private Limited towards post-closing adjustments in terms of Share Purchase Agreement as under:

- Rs. 0.07 million from Takahata Precision Co. Limited, Japan

- Rs. 2.04 million from Takahata Precision Pte. Limited, Singapore

** Financial year 2023-24

The Share Purchase Agreement executed between the Company and minority shareholders of SPR Takahata Precision India Private Limited also includes a call option with the
company to buy remaining stake in SPR Takahata Precision India Private Limited from the minority shareholders and a corresponding put option with the minority shareholders
to ask the Company to pucchase their shares during specified periods mentioned therein. Accordingly, the Company has recognised call option assct amounting to Rs. 41.00
million with respect to such options in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 32, Financial Instruments Presentation.

47. The Company has no transaction with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956

48_1) No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall lend or invest in
party identified by or on bebalf of the Company (ultimate beneficiaries).

i) The Company has received funds from its Holding Company (funding party) with the understanding that the Company shall invest in equity shate of ultimate beneficiary
identified by the Holding Company, as detailed below :

During the year ended 31 March 2025 (Rs. million)

Name of the funding party Date of receipt of| Amount funded by| Name of ultimate|Date of investment/Amount
funds from funding|funding party (in Rs|beneficiary into ultimate |invested in
party millions) beneficiary uitimate
beneficiary
SPR TGPEL
Precision. Engincenng
Shriram Pistons & Rings Limited 19 December 2024 2,176.23 | Lumated (formetly| 24 December 2024 2,176.23
TGPEL Peeeision
Engineering Lid)
With regard to the shove investients made during the year ended 31 March 2025 the Company has complied with the relevant provisions of apjilicable Jaws.
During the year ended 31 March 2024 b
(Rs. million)
Name of the funding party Date of receipt off Amount funded by| Name of ultimate|Date of investment/Amount
funds from funding|funding party (in Rs|beneficiary into ultimate |invested in
party millions) beneficiary ultimate
beneficiary
SPR Takahata
10 October 2023 Precision India Private|16 October 2023
Shriram Pistons & Rings Limited 675.09 [Lamuted 675.09
SPR EMF|01 kebruary 2024
05 February 2024 Innovations  Prvate (15.12)
700,00 |Limited 01 March 2024 700.00

49. The Company doesn't have any contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024
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50. The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recordad in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961.

51. No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)
and rules made thereunder.

52. There are no charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

53. The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual Currency during the financial year.

54. The Company's mannfacturing aperations were commenced on 27 March 2024, at its facility located at Pithampur, Madhya Pradesh.
55. The Company is not declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority

56. The Company has complied with the number of layers as prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules,
2017,

57.The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on 07 May 2025.

58. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) bas prescribed a new requirement for companies under the proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, inserted
by the Companies (Accounts) Amendmeunt Rules 2021 requiring companies, which uses accounting software for maintaining its books of account, shall only use such accounting
software which has a feature of recording audit trail of each and every transaction, creating an edit log of each change made in the books of account along with the date when such
change were made and ensuring that the audit trail cannot be disabled. The new requirement is applicable with effect from the financial year beginning on 1 April 2023.During the
year, the audit trail (edit logs) at the application level for the accounting software were operating for all relevant transaction recorded in the software. Further, the audit trail (edit
logs) feature for any direct changes made at the database level was enabled w.e.f 24 January 2025 for the accounting software SAP ECC used for maintenance of books of
accounts.

59. Figures of previous year have been regrouped/ reclassified, wherever necessary, to correspond with the figures of the current period.

In terms of our report attached

T'or Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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